



Cambria Community Services District Standing Committee Bylaws

1. SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY

1.1. Standing Committees are advisory to the Board of Directors. The Committees shall gather information, explore alternatives, examine implications, and offer options for review and deliberation by the Board of Directors. Committee members are expected to stay current on the issues under discussion by the Board of Directors.

1.2 Each Standing Committee shall consider only District-related issues approved and assigned to it by the Board of Directors, or issues within the purview of each Committee as defined in “Standing Committee Statements of Purpose and Responsibilities” below.

1.3 Apart from their normal function as part of an advisory resource, Committees and the individual members have no authority and may not verbally or by action represent the Committee or the CCSD in any policy, act, or expenditure.

1.4 The Committee and its members shall maintain collaborative working relationships with the public, other Standing Committees and the CCSD Board of Directors.

1.5 Any Standing Committee, or its ad hoc committees, may meet with staff and/or District consultants but shall not interfere with their operational duties, as determined by the General Manager. Any information requests to staff will be specific in nature and relate to the business of the Committee.

1.6 Standing Committee Statements of Purpose and Responsibilities

1.6.1 The Finance Committee shall:

- (a) Provide review for transparent budget processes and financial management that promote fiscal stability and instill public trust;
- (b) Support and work directly with the CCSD General Manager and Administrative Department Manager-Finance Manager in enhancing financial integrity and monetary discipline;
- (c) Discuss and receive public input during committee meetings and advise the Board of Directors on financial matters;
- (d) Provide financial review, assessment, and recommendation to CCSD Board of Directors regarding potential funding sources available to the District from private, public, County, State or federal entities; and
- (e) Support other standing committees’ fiscal review needs.

1.6.2 The Resources and Infrastructure Committee shall:

- (a) Assess existing resources and gather information regarding infrastructure and

- resource needs of the community;
- (b) Support and work directly with the CCSD General Manager and Utilities Department Manager in identifying/defining plans to meet the infrastructure needs of the community, working within the bounds of current and potential resources and priorities of the District;
- (c) Provide recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding actions to meet the community's infrastructure needs; and
- (d) Support other standing committees' resource and infrastructure review needs.

1.6.3 The Policy Committee shall:

- (a) Review existing operational and governance policies that the Board has identified as requiring assessment, update, or organization for consistency with other existing policies; Identify potential areas of policy needs not currently addressed in the CCSD Policy Handbook and develop needs assessments regarding impact due to lack of policy and immediacy of need. The Committee Chair shall provide the needs assessments to the Board members for consideration. If the Board determines that a policy is required, the Board shall proceed according to the existing Policy No. 1000 ("Adoption/Amendment of Policies") and (for policies to be included in the District Policy Handbook) the "Policy Handbook Checklist" adopted on November 10, 2022; and
- (b) Support other standing committees' policy review needs.

1.6.4 The Parks, Recreation and Open Space Committee shall:

- (a) Assess existing resources and gather information regarding the parks, open space, and recreational needs of the community;
- (b) Establish collaborative working relationships with relevant public and private organizations;
- (c) Support and work directly with the CCSD General Manager and Facilities & Resources Manager to create plans for meeting the needs of the community within the bounds of current and potential resources;
- (d) Recommend plans of action to the Board regarding meeting the community needs for parks, recreation, and open space; and
- (e) Facilitate communication with the residents of Cambria both to update community priorities for parks, recreation, and open space and to obtain community support for planned actions.

2. COMMITTEE MEMBERS

2.1 The Committee shall consist of five volunteer members from the community and one CCSD Board Director to act as Chairperson.

2.2 Each Committee member must live and be registered to vote within the CCSD boundaries.

2.3 Method of appointment:

- (a) Volunteer Committee members shall serve two-year terms. Such terms shall begin in February of odd-numbered years.
- (b) At the end of a term of office, a Committee member wishing to continue for another term shall fill out an application as specified in 2.3(d) below and will be considered for appointment along with the other applicants.
- (c) Prior to the beginning of a term, or in the event of a vacancy during an

unexpired term, the CCSD shall invite applications for Committee membership. Such invitation shall be advertised on the CCSD website and at all Cambria CSD public information bulletin boards. Application forms may be obtained and submitted to the website or the Administrative Offices during regular business hours during the application period.

(d) Any applications received per 2.3(d) above shall be retained by the District and remain active for two years.

(e) Committee members shall be appointed from the pool of applicants (see 2.3(d) above) by recommendation of the Committee Chairperson and approved by a majority vote of the CCSD Board of Directors.

(f) The Committee Chairperson shall be responsible for interviewing new applicants and determining their qualifications prior to making a recommendation to the CCSD Board of Directors.

2.4 Committee members shall attend all regular and special meetings of the Committee unless excused for emergencies or other good cause:

(a) Good cause for absence includes circumstances of which the Chairperson of the Committee is notified prior to the meeting. Good cause also includes Board-authorized or Committee-authorized meeting absences, such as attendance at a conference directly related to the functions and interests of the District or at the meeting of another public agency in order to participate in an official capacity.

(b) A Committee member who is absent for good cause may notify the Chairperson by electronic transmission (e.g., email), telephone communication, or letter. The minutes shall indicate whether an absence was excused.

(c) A vacancy shall occur if a Committee member is absent from three (3) consecutive regular meetings without good cause, except as otherwise provided for by law or as authorized by the Board of Directors.

2.5. Vacancies of unexpired terms of office of regular Committee members shall be filled by recommendation of the Committee Chairperson from the pool of applicants (see 2.3(d) above) and appointment by the CCSD Board of Directors.

3. COMMITTEE OFFICERS

3.1. The Chairperson shall be chosen annually from members of the Board of Directors by a majority vote of the Board.

3.2. The Vice-Chairperson and Secretary shall be chosen annually by a majority of the Committee.

3.3. No member of the Committee shall hold more than one office.

3.4. Chairperson duties:

(a) Vote only in the event of a tie vote,

(b) Preside over meetings,

(c) Establish committee meeting agendas,

(d) Appoint appropriate ad hoc committees,

(e) Sign reports,

(f) Represent the Committee at regular CCSD Board meetings,

(g) Coordinate with CCSD staff input for agenda preparation for the monthly Committee meetings,

3.5. Vice Chairperson duties:

- (a) Perform the duties of the Chairperson in their absence,
- (b) Act as liaison to another Standing Committee as determined by the Chairperson or a majority of the Committee.

3.6. Secretary duties:

- (a) Record the minutes of the meetings in action form, ensuring the accuracy of when, how, and by whom the Committee's business was conducted.
- (b) Submit the draft written minutes and recording to CCSD staff for the public record.
- (c) Minutes should include, at a minimum:
 - The date, time, and location of the meeting,
 - A list of the Committee members present and absent,
 - A record of reports presented and by whom,
 - The text of motions adopted along with a count of yes and no votes and the Committee members dissenting,
 - List of items considered for future agenda,
 - Time of meeting adjournment.

4. COMMITTEE MEMBER GUIDELINES

- 4.1. Members of the Committee and their activities are bound by all applicable provisions of the Brown Act (Government Code Sections 54950, et seq.).
- 4.2. Members of the Committee shall not participate in discussion of, or vote on issues constituting conflicts of interest – “no public official shall make, participate in making, or in any attempt to use his official position to influence a governmental decision in which he/she knows or has reason to know he/she has a financial interest.” (Government Code Section 87100).
- 4.3. Members of the Committee are charged with protecting and upholding the public interest and exhibiting the highest level of ethics.
- 4.4. Committee members shall at all times conduct themselves with courtesy towards each other, to staff, and to members of the audience present at Committee meetings. Should a Committee member disrupt Committee meetings or participate in behavior contrary to the charges and responsibilities of the Committee, the Committee, by a majority vote, may recommend action to the CCSD Board.

5. AGENDA PROCEDURE

- 5.1. Members shall provide input on the agenda to the Chairperson.
- 5.2. The Chair shall develop the draft agenda with input from the Vice Chair and CCSD staff.
- 5.3. CCSD staff shall prepare the final agenda and attachments.
- 5.4. CCSD staff shall post agendas on the District's website and at the District Administrative Office and distribute to all Committee members and the agenda distribution list.

6. MEETINGS

- 6.1. The Committee shall meet within the jurisdictional boundaries of the CCSD, except as

otherwise permitted by the Brown Act.

- 6.2. Information that is exchanged before meetings shall be distributed through the Confidential Administrative Assistant, and Committee members will receive all information being distributed as part of the meeting agenda.
- 6.3. The Committee shall hold regular meetings as often as once a month and at least quarterly, on dates set annually by the Committee. The Committee may call special meetings as needed, with required 24-hour public notice.
- 6.4. A majority of all Committee members, including the Chairperson, shall constitute a quorum.
- 6.5. The business at regular meetings of the Committee shall be conducted for no more than a two-hour period, unless extended by a four-fifths vote of the Committee. In the event there are remaining items on the agenda at the end of the two-hour period, the Committee may adjourn the meeting to a specific date and time in accordance with the provisions of Government Code Section 54955. The intent and purpose of this policy is to encourage a reasonable time period in which the Committee's business is discussed and to protect against fatigue in discussing and deciding important issues.
- 6.6. The CCSD General Manager may determine a staff liaison to the Committee if needed for facilitating communication.

7. PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY

- 7.1. The rules contained in the current edition of *Rosenberg's Rules of Order* (and *Robert's Rules of Order* 12th Edition for matters on which Rosenberg is silent) shall govern the Committee in all cases to which they are applicable and in which they are not inconsistent with these Bylaws, any special rules of order the Committee may adopt, and statutes applicable to the Committee that do not authorize the provision of these Bylaws to take precedence.

8. AMENDMENTS TO BYLAWS

- 8.1. These Standing Committee Bylaws shall be reviewed annually at the first regular Board of Directors meeting in January, after which amendments may be considered for adoption by the Board.
- 8.2. The CCSD Board of Directors retains sole authority to amend these Bylaws. A majority of the CCSD Board of Directors must approve any amendments.